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August 31, 2021 

ADDENDUM 1 

TO:  All Prospective Offerors 

FROM:  Scott Bachtell, Supervisor of Purchasing 

REF:  Bid 2022-09 Portable Classroom Improvements at Five Schools 

BID DUE DATE/TIME:    September 8, 2021 at 11:00 am EST 
  Washington County Public Schools Center for Education Services 

10435 Downsville Pike 
Hagerstown, MD 21740 

 
The following changes are made a part of the Drawings and Specifications for the project named above. Receipt of 

this Addendum is to be acknowledged in the space provided on the Bid Form.  Failure to do so may subject the Bid to 

be considered as non-responsive. 

GENERAL/BIDDER QUESTIONS 

1.1 Q: Is the contractor responsible for drop ceiling/grid replacement in any of the 8 relocated units? 
A: No. 

1.2 Q: How many of the 8 relocated units require exterior painting? 
A: All eight units require exterior painting. 
 

1.3 Q: Is the required installed skirting T-111 painted wood or vinyl? What is the specified color? 
 A: The new skirting at each portable shall be vinyl and selected by the Architect and Owner from a standard 

product line of the Contractor’s choice. 
 
1.4 Q: Why are there footer and block pier details on Drawing A100? 
 A: The details in question are to be used for the ramp foundations, where applicable. The details on S100 

(attached to this addendum) apply to the relocated portable buildings at NHHS. 
 
1.5 Q: Are the 8 relocated units currently tied down with hurricane straps and in ground anchors? 
 A: Yes. 
 
1.6 Q: Does our scope of work include removal of the middle portable classroom at Fountain Rock Elementary? 
 A: Yes. However, it cannot be removed until the other two portable classrooms are occupied by students and 

staff. The middle classroom will be in use by the school during the fall of 2021. 
 
1.7 Q: Is the work to be performed during normal working hours? 
 A: Work performed outside or inside the portable classrooms can be performed during normal business 

hours. Work performed inside the main school building (at each site) must be performed after hours or on 
weekends. 

 
1.8 Q: For IT and speaker cabling, are J hooks in lieu of conduit acceptable? 
 A: Yes. 
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1.9 Q: Does the CMSI existing modular unit at Fountain Rock need to be demolished/removed off site? 
 A: Yes. See Addendum item 1.6. 
 
1.10 Q: Is the skirting to have a 2x10 pressure treated mow strip? 
 A: Yes, all skirting shall have a 2x10 pressure treated mow strip at grade, rated for ground contact and painted 

to match the skirting. 
 
1.11 Q: Are all units that are to be relocated plus the three existing units at NHHS to be entirely painted? 
 A: The existing portables at NHHS are to be painted to match the paint on the two new portables at NHHS. In 

other words, five portables at NHHS receive new exterior paint. The only portable classroom relocation within 
this contract’s scope of work is the relocation of the NHHS portables to a new location at NHHS, as detailed 
within this addendum. 

 
1.12 Q: Are all relocated units to have gutter and downspouts repaired? 
 A: Gutter and downspout repairs will be performed on an as-needed basis, and performed via change order. 
 
1.13 Q: Are all relocated units to receive splash blocks? 
 A: Yes, at each downspout location. 
 
1.14 Q: Is skirting required at perimeter of new aluminum decks? 
 A: No. 
 
1.15 Q: WHS civil plans show no new concrete sidewalk. 
 A: For WHS, concrete sidewalk shall be installed as shown on the architectural plans. 
 
1.16 Q: Is concrete required at electrical trenches per trench detail? 
 A: Contractors shall adhere to the details as shown. Note that concrete is only required beneath parking 

lots/roadways. 
 
1.17 Q: Drawing E304 refers to Smithsburg High School. 
 A: There is no work at Smithsburg High School. Sheet E304 references work at Smithsburg Elementary School. 
 
1.18 Q: Is coordination for fire marshal inspections and final building inspections required by the GC? 
 A: Yes. 
 
1.19 Q: Will there be a need for network cabling inside each portable from data panel to faceplates? If so, how many? 
 A: No. 
 
1.20 Q: Will there be a need for intercom phone extensions to each portable from the school intercom cabinet? 
 A: Yes. 
 
1.21 Q: Will it be the contractor’s responsibility to program Bogen intercom extensions in each portable? 
 A: Yes. 
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1.22 Q: Williamsport HS - Consideration for source of power for the 5th/added Portable should be given to the 

existing Transformer/Secondary Panel currently feeding the existing (4) Portables. There is actually no Fire Alarm 

Control Panel (FACP) where noted on Drawing E305 in the same room with the IT Data Rack.  It is elsewhere and 

time did not permit further investigation in this regard. 

Potomac Heights ES - There is actually no Fire Alarm Control Panel (FACP) where noted on Drawing E303 in the 

same room with the IT Data Rack.  This is actually a Honeywell Security Control Panel.  The FACP along with 

Voice Control Panel and NAC Power Extender Panel is in a closet accessible through the Principals’ Office.   

North Hagerstown HS - Consideration for source of power for the 4th & 5th/added Portables should be given to 
the existing Transformer/Secondary Panel NP currently feeding the existing (3) Portables via a separate metered 
Service from Hagerstown City Light.  City Light should be able to identify average and peak demands on this 
service for consideration in this regard. Note that the Panel designated to add a 125A/3P Circuit Breaker per 
Drawing E302 Note 7 is Emergency Panel EDLF.  This appears to be in error, given that no Portables at WCPS 
sites have previously been powered by Emergency source(s). 

 
Smithsburg ES - The Fire Alarm Annunciator Panel (FAAP) where noted on Drawing E304 in General Office 101 is 
actually the Fire Alarm Control Panel (FACP), and the (2) Transponder Panels shown in IT Room 154A do not 
exist. The required routing for the new 480V feeder from existing Panel MDP (not ‘HDP’, this designation is in 
error) is in no way accurately shown on Drawing E304, this is drawn to denote a vertical shaft.  The shaft extends 
horizontally a significant distance with several turns and the drawing should be corrected to reasonably indicate 
what is required. 
A: See Addendum Item 1.23. Revised MEP Drawings are attached to this addendum. 
 

1.23 Recent directives from the City of Hagerstown and State Fire Marshal’s Office dictate that WCPS cannot seal 
off the second door of a given portable classroom. Therefore, this contract now hereby calls for a 
prefabricated landing and set of steps to grade at the “non-ramp” door at each portable classroom – eight 
locations/doors in total. Refer to revised Sheet A100, attached to this addendum, for further details. Bidders 
shall assume that the platforms for all decks are 4’-0” above grade, but must field verify actual heights before 
generating submittals and ordering material. 

 

DRAWINGS 

 
1.24 ADD Drawing S100, attached to this addendum. These structural details apply to the relocated portable 

classrooms at NHHS. 
 
1.25 DELETE Sheet A100 and REPLACE with revised Sheet A100, attached to this addendum. 
 
1.25 DELETE Fox & Associates’ NHHS Drawings (Sheets 1-2 of 23 of the PDF) and REPLACE with the revised drawings 

attached to this addendum. The existing portables at NHHS shall be moved to a new location at NHHS within this 
project’s scope of work. 

 
1.26 DELETE E301 and REPLACE with revised E301 attached to this addendum. 
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1.27 DELETE E302 and REPLACE with revised E302 attached to this addendum. Note that the incorrect portable 

classroom location is shown on this drawing. Bidders shall assume that new portables are 200 feet away from 
the plan northwest corner of NHHS, and shall route all utilities to the new location as shown on the sheets 
referenced in Addendum item 1.24. 

 
1.28 DELETE E303 and REPLACE with revised E303 attached to this addendum. 
 
 
1.29 DELETE E304 and REPLACE with revised E304 attached to this addendum. 
 
1.30 DELETE E305 and REPLACE with revised E305 attached to this addendum. 
 
 

END OF ADDENDUM NARRATIVE 
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